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NOTICE

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 31, 2021

NOTICE is hereby given that the 2nd annual general meeting of the members of Avaada
SataraMH Private Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 04.00 p.m. at C-11,
Sector-65, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida, UP-201301, to transact the following ordinary
business:

To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors Report thereon.

By Order of the Board
For Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

E .
Neha Garg
Company Secretary


mailto:avaadasataraMH@avaada.com

,)9(- AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U40100UP2019PTC124019
AVAADA

Delhi Office: Registered Office:

910/19, Suryakiran, C-11, Sector-65,
Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Gautam Buddha Nagar,
New Delhi — 110 001 Noida, UP-201301
T: +011-68172100 T: +91-120-6757000

E: avaadasataraMH@avaada.com

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

Proxies, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

2. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall

2nd Annual General Meeting

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 04.00 p.m.

Name of the Member(s)

Registered address

E-mail ID

Folio No./DP ID-client ID

No. of Shares

I/We certify that I/ We am/ are the registered Member(s)/Proxy for the registered Member(s)

of the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 2nd annual general meeting of the Company to
be held at C-11, Sector-65, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida, UP-201301on Tuesday, September

28,2021 at 04.00 p.m.

Member’s/Proxy Signature

Note: Please complete this slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting venue.
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Form no. MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Management and
Administration Rules, 2014]

CIN U40100UP2019PTC124019
Name of the Company Avaada SataraMH Private Limited
Registered Office C-11, Sector-65, Gautam Buddha Nagar,Noida, UP-201301
Name of the member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail ID
Folio No./Client ID
DPID
I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint:
1. Name Address
Signature: or failing him
2. Name Address
Signature: or failing him
3. Name Address
Signature: or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 2nd
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 04.00
p.m. at C-11, Sector-65, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida, UP-201301and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolution as is indicated below:

Sr. No. of Particulars For Against
resolution

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual
financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors Report thereon

Signed this day of 2021
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Registered Office:
C-11, Sector-65,

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes:

This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the
registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Notwithstanding the above the Proxies can vote on such other items which may be tabled at the meeting
by the shareholders present. Only noting is required since they were appointed last year
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To,
The Members,

Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the 24 Annual Report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 as under:

Financial Results and Operations Update:
A summary of the comparative financial performance of the Company for Financial

Years 2020-2021 and 2019-20 is presented below:
(Amount in INR millions)

Particulars Financial Year ended
31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
Revenue from Operations 186.81 -
Other Income 6.42 0.33
Total Income 193.23 0.33
Less: Expenditure 14.75 10.73
Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation, Interest and Tax 178.48 (10.50)
Less: Depreciation and amortization expenses 77.46 -
Less: Interest on external borrowings 121.71 0.10

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items - -

Less: Exceptional and extraordinary items - -

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (PBT) (20.69) (10.50)
Provision for Income Tax
(i) Current Tax - -
(ii) Deferred Tax (3.47) (0.09)
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax (PAT) (17.22) (10.41)

The Company has around 72 MW capacity Solar PV Power Project(s) operational in
District Satara in the State of Maharashtra.

During the period under review, there was revenue from operations of Rs. 186.81
millions and the net loss after tax was of Rs. 17.22 millions against the net loss after
tax of Rs. 10.41 millions in the previous year.
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Dividend:

As the Company does not have any profits during the period, your Directors do not
recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Reserves:

As the Company does not have any operations and profits during the period, no
amount is proposed to be transferred to reserves.

Renewable Energy Outlook in India:

The renewable energy sector outlook for the year 2021 is bright despite the COVID-19
disruptions. The sector is currently on the path to recovery with a steady improvement
in power demand and recovery in economic activities. The year 2020 witnessed a slew
of powerful measures such as the announcement of privatization of DISCOMs in the
Union Territories, the special liquidity infusion of INR 90,000 crores into the
distribution utilities and the increased focus on consumer rights that set the stage for
greater structural reforms in the power. This trend is expected to continue in 2021.

The sun is shining bright on the Indian power sector. The share of renewable energy
is constantly on the rise in the country’s total energy mix. The Union Power ministry’s
directive to all the DISCOMs to purchase at least 21% of their total energy
requirements from renewable energy sources by 2021-22 augurs well for the sector
which came across as more resilient during the lockdown last year.

Even though the coal sector in the country is set to revive in 2021, the uptick in
economic activities, the need of clean and resilient energy sources never appeared
more pressing than in the pandemic year. Thermal power plants and coal mining
appear to be losing their sheen in the world of energy and are investing in clean
technology to stay relevant. For example, Coal India Limited, the State-owned
behemoth is diversifying into clean energy and non-mining operations in 2021. Close
to 30 coal plants are expected to retire in the coming years and the trend is getting
clearer.
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As on October 31, 2020, India’s total renewable energy installed capacity (excluding
hydro power above 25 MW) had reached over 89.63 GW. During the last 6 years, India
has witnessed the fastest rate of growth in renewable energy capacity addition among
all large economies, with renewable energy capacity growing by 2.5 times and solar
energy expanding by over 13 times. Renewable energy now constitutes over 24 per
cent of the country’s installed power capacity and around 11.62 per cent of the
electrical energy generation. If large hydro is included, the share of renewable energy
in electric installed capacity would be over 36 percent and over 26 per cent of the
electric energy generation. Around 49.59 GW renewable energy capacity is under
installation, and an additional 27.41 GW capacity has been tendered. This makes the
total capacity that is already commissioned and in the pipe line about 166.63 GW.
Further, large hydro power, which has also been declared as renewable energy has
about 45 GW hydro installed capacity and 13 GW capacity under installation. This
brings our total renewable energy portfolio of installed and in pipeline projects to 221
GW.

Impact of COVID -19:
The COVID-19 pandemic has thrown up tough challenges. The pace of renewable

energy projects development and commissioning has been impacted. However, the
Ministry was quick to respond to the situation. The operation of renewable energy
generation plants was declared as an essential service, and a policy for granting
extension of time for various renewable energy projects treating the lockdown as force
majeure has been put in place. The bidding for new projects has also continued
unimpeded, despite the pandemic and lockdown.

The following major steps/ measures were taken during COVID to facilitate ease of
doing business:

e Instructions were issued for granting time extension to renewable energy
projects and release of performance bank guarantees proportionate to work
completion, to mitigate the impact of COVID-19;

i



mailto:avaadasataraMH@avaada.com

m- AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U40100UP2019PTC124019

AVAADA

Delhi Office: Registered Office:

910/19, Suryakiran, C-11, Sector-65,
Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Gautam Buddha Nagar,
New Delhi — 110 001 Noida, UP-201301
T: +011-68172100 T: +91-120-6757000

E: avaadasataraMH@avaada.com

e  States have been advised to maintain sanctity of contracts and ensure certainty
in supporting policies for renewables;

e It has been clarified to the States that ‘must run ‘status of renewable energy
remains unchanged during the lockdown period, and that curtailment, except
for grid safety reasons, would amount to deemed generation; and

e  Suitable relief/extension was granted in all time-bound activities which were
affected by the pandemic

Installed renewable power generation capacity has increased at a fast pace over the
past few years. With the increased support of government and improved economics,
the sector has become attractive from investors perspective. As India looks to meet its
energy demand on its own, which is expected to reach 15,820 TWh by 2040, renewable
energy is set to play an important role. As a part of its Paris Agreement commitments,
the Government of India has set an ambitious target of achieving 175 GW of renewable
energy capacity by 2022. These include 100 GW of solar capacity addition and 60 GW
of wind power capacity. Government plans to establish renewable energy capacity of
450 GW by 2030.

Market Size for Renewable Energy in India
Small Hydro Wind Power Bio-Power Solar Power  Total Capacity

4786.81 MW  39,247.05 MW 10,200.15 MW 40,085.37 MW  94,433.79 MW
Renewable Energy Installated Capacity as on 31st Mar' 2021

Small Hydro 5%

Solar Power
42%
Bio-Power
| 1%

———
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Physical Progress in 2020-21 & Cumulative upto March, 2021

e el
Sector . Achizven;ents (as on
arget ril-
5 Ma(rcfl 2021) 31.03.2021)
I. GRID-INTERACTIVE POWER (CAPACITIES IN MW)
Wind Power 3000.00 1503.30 39247.05
Solar Power - Ground Mounted 9000.00 3533.14 35645.63
Solar Power - Roof Top 2000.00 1924.44 4439.74
Small Hydro Power 100.00 103.64 4786.81
Biomass (Bagasse) Cogeneration) 200.00 173.37 9373.87
bagasse) gf;iiiiﬁii) / Captive 20.00 9724 77205
Waste to Power 30.00 21.00 168.64
Total 14380.00 7356.13 94433.79
II. OFF-GRID/ CAPTIVE POWER (CAPACITIES IN MWk
Waste to Energy 10.00 20.76 218.95
SPV Systems 500.00 171.11 1149.49
Total 510.00 191.87

1368.44
ITII. OTHER RENEWABLE TECHNOLOGIES (Capacity in Nos.)

Biogass Plants (in Lakhs) 0.60 0.11

51.65
With a potential capacity of 363 gigawatts (GW) and with policies focused on the

renewable energy sector, Northern India is expected to become the hub for renewable
energy in India.
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Wind energy is estimated to contribute 60 GW, followed by solar power at 100 GW by
2022 and 15 GW from biomass and hydropower. The target for renewable energy has
been set to 175 GW by 2022 and Government plans to establish renewable energy
capacity of 450 GW by 2030.

Government initiatives

India has worked systemically for putting in place facilitative policies and
programmes for achieving the goal. The success is mainly attributed to several diverse
policy instruments, as under:

e  Tocreate a pan-India renewable energy market and encourage setting up of the
renewable energy projects in high renewable resource potential areas, in
September 2016, waiver of Inter State Transmission System charges and losses
for sale of power from solar and wind power projects was notified. This waiver
has been extended to projects to be commissioned up to June 30, 2023;

e  Keeping in view India’s long-term goals of decarbonising the electricity systems,
and achieving energy security, and in keeping with our international
commitments, in July 2016, long term Renewable Purchase Obligation growth
trajectory, uniformly applicable to all States/UTs, was notified;

e  Competitive Bidding guidelines for procurement of solar and wind power have
been notified under section 63 of Electricity Act, 2003. These Guidelines provide
for standardization and uniformity of the procurement process and a risk-
sharing framework between various stakeholders, thereby encouraging
investments, enhancing bankability of projects and improving profitability. The
Guidelines also facilitate transparency and fairness in the procurement processes
which have resulted in the drastic fall in solar and wind power prices over the
past few years;

J Solar rooftop systems have been promoted in commercial /industrial/Govt.

sector /residential sector through policy and regulatory interventions e.g.
mandatory solar provision in the Model Building bye-laws of MoHUA and

\\
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concessional financing arrangement through Banks/FlIs in addition to central
financial assistance for residential sector and achievement based incentives to
DISCOMs. In addition few States has also made provision of mandatory solar
installation for buildings above certain plot area/connected load;

e  Foreign investors can enter into joint venture with an Indian partner for financial
and/or technical collaboration and for setting up of renewable energy-based
power generation projects. Upto 100 per cent foreign investment as equity
qualifies for automatic approval;

e  To build investor trust by ensuring payment security and tackle the risks related
to delays in payments to independent power producers, DISCOMs have been
mandated to issue and maintain letter of credit (LCs);

e For quality assurance, standards for deployment of solar photovoltaic
systems/devices have been notified;

e  Renewable energy projects have been given priority sector lending status for
loans up to a limit of Rs 30 crore;

e  Off-grid applications are promoted through provision of subsidies from the
central government; and

Efforts have been undertaken to strengthen and expand the domestic
manufacturing eco-system. Schemes namely PM-KUSUM, Solar Rooftop and
CPSU have a precondition of Domestic Content Requirement, directly creating a
domestic demand of more than 36 GW solar PV (cells & modules). In order to
curb proliferation of imported solar PV cells and modules, a Safeguard Duty was
imposed w.e.f. 30 July 2018 for two years. It has been extended for one more year
at the rates of 14.90 per cent for imports during July 30, 2020 to 29 January, 2021;
and 14.50 percent for imports during January 30, 2021 to July 29, 2021. Imposition
of an enhanced Basic Customs Duty and financial incentives for domestic solar
PV manufacturing have also been envisaged.

\\
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Off-Grid Solar PV Applications Programme Phase III:
Implementation of Phase-3 of the Off-Grid Solar PV Applications Programme for

Solar Street Lights, Solar Study Lamps and Solar Power Packs was extended for
North-Eastern States during the year. Sanction under the Scheme stands at 1.74 lakh
solar street lights, 13.5 lakh solar study lamps and 4 MW capacity solar power packs,
which is under different stages of implementation by state nodal agencies. Till October
2020 around 30,000 solar street lights have been installed, 2.13 lakh solar study lamps
have been distributed and 1.5 MW solar power packs have been set-up as reported by
SNAs.

Atal Jyoti Yojana (AJAY) Phase-II:

The AJAY Ph-II Scheme for installation of solar street lights with 25% fund
contribution from MPLAD Funds was discontinued from 1 April 2020 as the
Government decided to suspend the MPLAD Funds for next two Financial Years i.e.
2020-21 and 2021-22. However, installation of 1.5 lakh solar street lights sanctioned
under the scheme till March 2020 was under progress and till October 2020 around

0.84 lakh solar street lights have been reported to have been installed and balance are
targeted to be completed by March 2021.

Roof Top Solar programme Phase-II:

Roof Top Solar programme Phase-II for accelerated deployment of solar roof top
systems with a target of 40 GW installed capacity by the Financial Year 2021-22, is also
under implementation. The scheme provides for financial incentive for 4 GW of solar
roof top capacity to residential sector and there is a provision to incentivise the
distribution companies for incremental achievement over the previous year. For
residential sector, use of domestically manufactured solar cells and modules have
been mandated. This scheme is expected to act as catalyst for adding solar cell and
module manufacturing capacity in India. So far, a cumulative 4.4 GW solar roof top
projects have been set up in the country.

Solar Parks Scheme:

To facilitate large scale grid connected solar power projects, a scheme for
“Development of Solar Parks and Ultra Mega Solar Power Projects” is under
implementation with a target capacity of 40 GW capacity by March 2022. Solar parks
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provide solar power developers with a plug and play model, by facilitating necessary
infrastructure like land, power evacuation facilities, road connectivity, water facility
etc. along with all statuary clearances. So far, 40 solar parks have been sanctioned with
a cumulative capacity of 26.3 GW in 15 states. Solar power projects of an aggregate
capacity of around 8 GW have already been commissioned in these parks.

Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) Scheme:
A scheme for setting up 12 GW Grid- Connected Solar PV Power Projects by Public
Sector Undertakings with domestic cells and modules is under implementation.

Viability Gap Funding support is provided under this scheme. Apart from adding
solar capacity, the scheme will also create demand for domestically manufactured
solar cells/modules, and thus help domestic manufacturing.

Waiver of ISTS Transmission Charges and Losses for Solar & Wind Power:

In order to promote generation from renewable sources of energy, Ministry of Power
has issued an Order on August 5, 2020, for extension of waiver of Inter State
Transmission System (ISTS) charges and losses for transmission of the electricity
generated from solar and wind projects commissioned till 30th June, 2023.

It may be noted that earlier in line with the provisions of Tariff Policy 2010, this
Ministry had issued waiver order for ISTS charges and losses for transmission of
electricity generated from solar and wind sources of energy on September 30, 2016.
Such wavier of ISTS charges and losses has been extended from time to time.

Wind Power

India’s wind power potential at hub height of 120 meters is 695 GW. The wind power
installed capacity has grown by 1.8 times during past 6.5 years to about 38.26 GW (as
on October 31, 2020) and India now has the 4th largest wind power capacity in the
world. The wind energy sector is led by the indigenous wind power industry with a
strong project ecosystem, operation capabilities and a manufacturing base of about 10
GW per annum. Ministry is developing strategy and roadmap to harness the potential
of offshore wind energy along India’s coastline.
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Scheme for procurement of blended wind power from 2500 MW ISTS connected

projects
The objective of the Scheme is to provide a framework for procurement of electricity

from 2500 MW ISTS Grid Connected Wind Power Projects with up to 20% blending
with Solar PV Power through a transparent process of bidding. Solar Energy

Corporation of India Ltd. (SECI) is the nodal agency for implementation of the
Scheme. It has provisions for payment security mechanism, commission schedule,
power offtake constraints, power purchase agreement, etc. SECI has awarded 970 MW
of projects under this scheme at discovered tariff of Rs. 2.99-3.00 per unit.

Guidelines for Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process for procurement of power
from Grid Connected Wind Solar Hybrid Projects
The objective is to provide a framework for procurement of electricity from ISTS Grid

Connected Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Projects through a transparent process of
bidding. Individual minimum size of project allowed is 50 MW at one site and a single
bidder cannot bid for less than 50 MW. The rated power capacity of one resource
(wind or solar) shall be at least 33% of the total contracted capacity. It has provisions
for payment security mechanism, commission schedule, power offtake constraints,
power purchase agreement, etc. SECI is the nodal agency for implementation of the
Scheme.

Guidelines for procurement of Round the Clock power (RTC Power) from
Renewable Projects through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding
With the aim of promoting RE power and to provide Round-The-Clock (RTC) power

to the DISCOMs from renewable energy sources, Ministry of Power has issued RTC
power Guidelines vide notification dated July 22, 2020. The amendments made in the
said guidelines were notified in Gazette of India on November 3, 2020. Now, the
complemented power may be used from any fuel sources.

Other renewables for power generation

The Ministry is implementing a scheme to support biomass-based co-generation in
sugar mills and other industries. Energy generation from urban, industrial, and
agricultural waste/residues is an area of focus. Waste to Energy projects, besides
generating useful energy, also help combat pollution. As on October 31, 2020, installed
capacity of grid connected biomass power projects stood at about 10.15 GW, waste to

\ /" E ':'-:
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energy projects capacity was 168.64 MW (grid connected) and 204.73 MWeq (off grid),
and about 4.74 GW small hydro power capacity from 1133 small hydro power projects
was operational.

Green Energy Corridor

In order to facilitate renewable power evacuation and reshaping the grid for future
requirements, the Green Energy Corridor (GEC) projects have been initiated. The first
component of the scheme, Inter-state GEC with target capacity of 3200 circuit KM
(ckm) transmission lines and 17,000 MVA capacity sub-stations, was completed in
March 2020. The second component - Intra-state GEC with a target capacity of 9700
ckm transmission lines and 22,600 MVA capacity sub-stations is expected to be
completed by September 2021. The present efforts are focused on strengthening
institutions, resources and protocols, and investing judiciously in grid infrastructure.
A total of 7175 ckm of transmission lines have been constructed and substations of
aggregated capacity of 7825 MVA have been charged.

Investments/ Developments

According to the data released by Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal
Trade (DPIIT), FDI inflow in the Indian non-conventional energy sector stood at US$
9.83 billion between April 2000 and December 2020. More than US$ 42 billion has been
invested in India’s renewable energy sector since 2014. New investment in clean
energy in the country reached US$ 11.1 billion in 2018. According to the analytics firm
British Business Energy, India ranked 3rd globally in terms of its renewable energy
investments and plans in 2020.

Some major investments and developments in the Indian renewable energy sector are
as follows:

e  InApril 2021, Central Electricity Authority approved the uprating of JSW Energy
Karcham Wangtoo hydro power plant to 1,091 megawatt (MW) from 1,000 MW;

e In April 2021, GE Power India's approved the acquisition of 50% stake in NTPC
GE Power Services Pvt. Ltd. for Rs 7.2 crore (US$ 0.96 million);
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e  The NTPC is expected to commission India’s largest floating solar power plant
in Ramagundam, Telangana by May-June 2022. The expected total installed
capacity is 447MW;

e In March 2021, Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (EIYP), an alternative
investment fund managed by Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors, acquired a
74% stake in the solar portfolio of Engie Group in India;

e  In March 2021, the US Agency for International Development (USAID) and the
US International Development Finance Corporation (DFC) reported a loan
guarantee programme worth US$ 41 million to support Indian SME investments
in renewable energy;

e  In March 2021, Adani Green Energy announced plan to acquire a 250 MW solar
power project in the northern state of Rajasthan (commissioned by Hero Future
Energies). The expected deal value stands at ~Rs.10 billion (US$ 136.20 million);

J In March 2021, Adani Green Energy Ltd. (AGEL) signed a contract to acquire a
100% stake in SkyPower Global's 50 MW solar power project in Telangana. This
would increase its operational renewable capacity to 3,395 MW, with a total
renewable portfolio of 14,865 MW;

e In March 2021, JICA (Japan International Cooperation Agency) entered a loan
agreement with Tata Cleantech Capital Limited (TCCL) for JPY 10 billion (US$
90.31 million) to enable the firm provide loans to companies in India for
renewable energy production, e-mobility solutions and energy conservation in
order to help offset the effects of climate change by reducing greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions (in line with the Green Loan Principles);

e In March 2021, the European Union joined the Coalition for Disaster Resilient

Infrastructure (CDRI), an India-led initiative aimed at ensuring long-term
development while addressing the climate change's adverse effects;
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e In March 2021, India and the US agreed to restructure their strategic energy
partnership to concentrate on cleaner energy sectors including biofuels and
hydrogen production;

e India added 2,320 MW of solar capacity amidst COVID-19 pandemic from
January to September 2020;

e In October 2020, post approval from NITI Aayog and the Department of
Investment and Public Asset Management, NTPC set up a wholly owned
company for its renewable energy business—NTPC Renewable Energy Ltd.
NTPC is targeting to generate ~30% or 39 GW of its overall power capacity from
renewable energy sources by 2032;

J The Solar Energy Corporation of India (SECI) implemented large-scale central
auctions for solar parks and has awarded contracts for 47 parks with over 25 GW
of combined capacity;

J In April 2020, Vikram Solar bagged a 300 megawatt (MW) solar plant project for
Rs. 1,750 crore (US$ 250.39 million) from National Thermal Power Corporation
Ltd (NTPC) under CPSU-II scheme in a reverse bidding auction; and

J Around Rs. 36,729.49 crore (US$ 5.26 billion) investment was made during April-
December 2019 by private companies in renewable energy.

Road Ahead

The Government is committed to increased use of clean energy sources and is already
undertaking various large-scale sustainable power projects and promoting green
energy heavily. In addition, renewable energy has the potential to create many
employment opportunities at all levels, especially in rural areas. The Ministry of New
and Renewable Energy (MNRE) has set an ambitious target to set up renewable
energy capacities to the tune of 227 GW by 2022, of which about 114 GW is planned
for solar, 67 GW for wind and other for hydro and bio amongst others. India’s
renewable energy sector is expected to attract investment worth US$ 80 billion in the
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next four years. About 5,000 Compressed Biogas plants will be set up across India by
2023.

It is expected that by 2040, around 49% of the total electricity will be generated by
renewable energy as more efficient batteries will be used to store electricity, which
will further cut the solar energy cost by 66% as compared to the current cost. Use of
renewables in place of coal will save India Rs. 54,000 crore (US$ 8.43 billion) annually.
Further, renewable energy will account for 55% of the total installed power capacity

by 2030.

As per the Central Electricity Authority (CEA) estimates, by 2029-30, the share of
renewable energy generation would increase from 18% to 44%, while that of thermal
is expected to reduce from 78% to 52%.

According to the year-end review (2020) by the Ministry of New and Renewable
Energy, another 49.59 GW of renewable energy capacity is under installation and an
additional 27.41 GW of capacity has been tendered. This puts the total capacity of
renewable energy projects (already commissioned or in the pipeline) at ~167 GW.

The Government of India wants to develop a “green city” in every state of the country,
powered by renewable energy. The ‘green city” will mainstream environment-friendly
power through solar rooftop systems on all its houses, solar parks on the city’s
outskirts, waste to energy plants and electric mobility-enabled public transport
systems.

Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any public deposits within the meaning of Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 and any amendments thereto.

Details of Subsidiary Companies/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures:

The Company is the Subsidiary Company of Avaada Energy Private Limited
(formerly known as ‘Giriraj Renewables Private Limited’). Further, the Company has
no subsidiary or associates or joint ventures during the said period.
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Board of Directors:

Mr. Prashant Choubey was appointed as an additional director of the Company at the
board meeting held on February 11, 2020 to hold office till the ensuing annual general

meeting and his appointment was regularised at the annual general meeting held on

September 28, 2020.

The present Directors of the Company are Mr. Prashant Choubey and Mrs. Radha M.S.

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors and attendance of directors:

Ten (10) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period viz on June
11, 2020, June 19, 2020, August 31, 2020, October 31, 2020, November 20, 2020,
December 24, 2020, December 30, 2020, December 31, 2020, February 10, 2021 and
March 31, 2021 and the intervening gap between any two meetings was within the

period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013:

\_

Ms. Radha M.S. Mr. Prashant Choubey
Directors
Date of
Board Meetings
June 11, 2020 Attended Attended
June 19, 2020 Attended Attended
August 31, 2020 Attended Attended
October 31, 2020 Attended Attended
November 20, 2020 Attended Attended
December 24, 2020 Attended Attended
December 30, 2020 Attended Attended
December 31, 2020 Attended Attended
February 10, 2021 Attended Attended
March 31, 2021 Attended Attended
% of attendance 100% 100%
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Change in paid-up share capital:

The earlier issue of upto 13,09,90,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to the existing
shareholders of the Company on preferential allotment basis was further subscribed
by two shareholders, Bharat Forge Limited (‘BFL") and Kalyani Technoforge Limited
during (‘KTFL’) the year to the extent of 1,89,75,550 equity shares of Rs.10 each.
Further, as it was intended to raise further equity share capital from KTFL, one of the
existing shareholders of the Company on preferential allotment basis for the purpose
of part financing the development of 72 MW capacity Solar PV Project(s) set at Satara
District, in the State of Maharashtra, the offer/issue to the extent of unsubscribed
number of equity shares out of earlier issue of upto 13,09,90,000 equity shares of
Rs. 10 each made to all the existing shareholders on preferential allotment basis at the
extra ordinary general meeting of the Company held on March 4, 2020 which was
valid for the period of 12 months from the date of passing of shareholder resolution
was closed.

Further, at the extra ordinary general meeting held on December 30, 2020, the
shareholders had approved raising of further equity share capital from KTFL to the
extent of upto 13,68,500 equity shares of Rs. 10 each on preferential allotment basis,
which was subscribed by KTFL during the year.

Accordingly, as on March 31, 2021, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company
have increased to Rs. 130,91,40,770 divided into 13,09,14,077 equity shares of Rs.10/-
each.

Statutory Auditors:

M/s Goyal Malhotra & Associates, the Chartered Accountants (FRN: 008015C), were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the annual general meeting
held on September 28, 2020 for a term of five (5) years i.e. from financial year 2020-21
to financial year 2024-25 on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon
between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors at a later
date.
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Internal Auditor:

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company has appointed M/s Acquisory Consulting LLP as the Internal
Auditors of the Company to undertake the Internal Audit of the Company for the
Financial Year 2021-22.

Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment
Rules, 2020, the Company has appointed JMJA & Associates LLP, Practicing
Company Secretaries (Certificate of Practice Number: 7447) as the Secretarial Auditors
of the Company to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial
Year 2021-22.

Auditors’ Report:

The Auditors” Report including annexures thereto is self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments and explanations from the Board as there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in their report.

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report:

No material changes and commitments occurred between the end of the Financial
Year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2021 to which the financial statements relate and
the date of this report which effects the financial position of the Company.

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities
provided:

Your Company is engaged in provision of infrastructural facilities, therefore,
exempted from compliance of applicable provisions of Section 186 (2) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.
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Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties:

All the arrangements or transactions with related parties were in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. There were no material
contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties during the period under
review.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo:

The provisions of Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2013 regarding disclosure of particulars with respect to
conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable to your
Company.

Further, there is no foreign exchange earnings and foreign exchange outgo on account
of import of capital goods is Rs. 859.56 million

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures:

There were no employees who were falling under the preview of rule 5 (2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules 2014 during the period under
review.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in
future:

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
that would impact the going concern status of the Company and the Company’s
operations at present and in future.

Extract of Annual Return:

The extract of annual return in Form MGT 9 as required pursuant to provisions of
Section 92(3) and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 is appended as an Annexure I to this Report.
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Compliance with Secretarial Standards:

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings and
General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, as
applicable to the Company.

Internal Control System:

Your Company has in place adequate internal control system with reference to
adherence to policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
business, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of
reliable financial information.

Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism and adopted Vigil Mechanism
Policy that enables the directors and group employees to bring to the attention of the
management any issue which is perceived to be in violation of or in conflict with the
fundamental business principles of the Company.

The Vigil Mechanism provides for (a) adequate safeguards against victimization of
persons who use the Vigil Mechanism; and (b) direct access to the Board of Directors
of the Company or any authorized person in appropriate or exceptional cases.

Risk Management:

The Company is managing its risks through well-defined internal financial controls
and there are no risks that may threaten the existence of the Company. The Company
has formulated entry level controls for risk management in the Company. It identifies
the components of risk evaluation and the principles based on which the controls have
been formulated.
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Directors” Responsibility Statement:
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that:

1. in the preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material
departures from the same;

2. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the
loss of the Company for that period;

3. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

4. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

5. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Acknowledgements:

Your Board wishes to place on record their appreciation for the valuable support and
assistance received by your Company from all the stakeholders and look forward to
their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

o

Prashant Choubey Radha M.S.
Date: June 14, 2021 Director Director
Place: Noida DIN: 08072225 DIN: 08037734

\\ /::5—



mailto:avaadasataraMH@avaada.com

=

-
AVAADA

AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED

Delhi Office:

910/19,
Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi — 110 001
T: +011-68172100

Annexure I
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Suryakiran,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as of period ended March 31, 2021
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U40100UP2019PTC124019

ii

Registration Date

December 2, 2019

iii

Name of the Company

Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

Category/Sub-category of

vii

details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

iv the Company Private Company

v Address of the Registered |C-11, Sector-65, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida-201301, Uttar
office and contact details |Pradesh

vi |Whether listed Company |No
Name , Address & contact |Link Intime India Pvt Ltd.

Tel No:- 02249186000

C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (WEST),Mumbai - 400083

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be
Sr. No Name and Description of | NIC Code of the Product/ |% to total turnover
"'l main products/services Service of the Company
Electric power generation
35105/106 0%
1 |through solar energy / v
IIT PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Holding/ |% of .
Sr. No. 2:2;::; Address of the |\ o1 N Subsidiary/|Shares :f::il;:'ble

Associate |held

Avaada Energy Private

Limited (formerly known

o i Kbl ot Sction 24 o

1 .| U80221MH2007PTC336458 & 74.00%|Companies Act,

Address: Hubtown Solaris, Company 2013

4th Floor, 406, N.S. Phadke

Marg Near Andheri East

West flyover, Andheri

(East), Mumbai- 400069
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Delhi Office:
910/19, Suryakiran,

Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi — 110 001

T: +011-68172100

AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U40100UP2019PTC 124019

Registered Office:
C-11, Sector-65,
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Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the period

No. of Shares held at the end of the period

% change
during the
period

Demat Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt. or State Govt.

c) Bodies Corporates

- 9,68,75,961

9,68,75,961

9,68,75,961

9,68,75,961

d) Bank/FI

e) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

- 9,68,75,962

9,68,75,962

9,68,75,961

9,68,75,962

(13.62)

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FI

e) Any other

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of Promoter
(A)= A)M+A)2)

- 9,68,75,962

9,68,75,962

87.62

9,68,75,961

9,68,75,962

74.00

(13.62)

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FI

C) Cenntral govt

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital Fund

f) Insurance Companies

g) FIIS

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian

1,36,94,065

1,36,94,065

12.38

3,40,38,115

3,40,38,115

26.00

13.62

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

TJ TTOTVIOUAT SITATeTToTaeTs TIOTaIITg,

nominal share capital upto Rs.1
e

i) Individuals shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess of
Rs. 1 lakhs

c) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

- 1,36,94,065

1,36,94,065

12.38

3,40,38,115

3,40,38,115

26.00

13.62

Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B)1)+(B)(2)

- 1,36,94,065

1,36,94,065

12.38

3,40,38,115

3,40,38,115

26.00

13.62

C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

- 11,05,70,027

11,05,70,027

100.00

9,68,75,961

3,40,38,116

13,09,14,077

100.00

(0.00)
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(i) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
Shareholding at the beginning of the period Shareholding at the end of the period % change in share
holding during
the period
Sr. No. Shareholders Name Number of |% of total % of shares Number of % of total shares |% of shares
shares shares pledged/ shares of the Company |pledged/
of the encumbered to encumbered to
Company total shares total shares
1 |Avaada Energy Private Limited 9,68,75,961 87.62 87.62 9,68,75,961 74.00 74.00 (13.62)
2 |Mrs. Sindoor Mittal jointly with 1 ) B 1 ) )
Avaada Energy Private Limited
Total 9,68,75,962 87.62 87.62 9,68,75,962 74.00 74.00 (13.62)
(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING
Share holding at the Date Increase/ Reason Cumulative Share holding during
beginning of the period Decrease in the period
Sr. No. Name No. of Shares|% of total No of shares % of total shares
shares of the of the company
Company
1 |At the beginning of the period 9,68,75,962 87.62 April 1, 2020 - - 9,68,75,962 87.62
Date wise increase/ decrease in Allotment of
Promoters Share holding during the
o 1,13,73,911 shares
2 |year specifying the reasons for - - October 31, 2020 Decrease 9,68,75,962 76.48
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ to BFL and shares
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc) to 47,31,639 KTFL
Allotment of
- - December 24, 2020 Decrease 28,70,000 shares 9,68,75,962 74.78
to BFL
Allotment of
- - December 31, 2020 Decrease 13,68,500 shares 9,68,75,962
t0 KTEI 74.00
3 At the end of the period 9,68,75,962 87.62 March 31, 2021 9,68,75,962 74.00
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
Share holding at the Share holding at the end of the
beginning of the period period
Sr. No. (For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders| No.of shares| % of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
1 |Praxair India Private Limited (PIPL) 70,00,615 6.33 70,00,615 5.35
Sudarshan Chemical Industries
2 |Limited (SCIL) 66,92,000 6.05 66,92,000 5.11
3 |Bharat Forge Limited (BFL) 1,089 0.00 1,42,45,000 10.88
4  |Kalyani Technoforge Limited (KTFL) 361 0.00 61,00,500 4.66
(v)  Shareholding of Directors & KMP - NIL
Shareholding at the end of | Cumulative Shareholding during
the period the period
Sr. No.| For Each of the Directors & KMP | No.of shares| % of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1 |At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/ decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
2 |7 specifying the reasons for No transaction during the year

increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer/bonus/sweat

equity etc)

At the end of the year

N
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AVAADA

A%

INDEBTEDNESS

AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U40100UP2019PTC 124019

Delhi Office:

910/19, Suryakiran,
Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi — 110 001
T: +011-68172100

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(Amt in INR Millions)

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Particulars

Total
Indebtedness

Unsecured Deposits
i
Loans P

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial period

i) Principal Amount -

282.57 - 282.57

ii) Interest due but not paid -

iii) Interest accrued but not due -

Total (i+ii+iii) -

282.57 - 282.57

Change in Indebtedness during the financial period

Additions-Principal Amount

Reductions-Principal Amount

2,506.19

2,564.19

Additions- Interest due but not paid -

Additions-Interest accrued but not due -

Reduction

Net Change

2,506.19

2,564.19

Indebtedness at the end of the financial period

i) Principal Amount

2,506.19

340.57 - 2,846.76

ii) Interest due but not paid -

iii) Interest accrued but not due -

Total (i+ii+iii)

2,506.19

340.57 - 2,846.76

Registered Office:
C-11, Sector-65,

Gautam Buddha Nagar,

Noida, UP-201301
T: +91-120-6757000

E: avaadasataraMH@avaada.com

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND/ OR MANAGER:
NIL
Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income Tax 1961. - - - -
1 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income
tax Act, 1961 - - - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - - -
2 |Stock option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
Commission - - - -
4 |- as % of profit - - - -
- others (specify) - - - -
5 Others (please specify) - - - -
Total (A) - - - -
Ceiling as per the Act - - - -

—
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SINET

AVAADA

Delhi Office:

910/19, Suryakiran,
Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi — 110 001
T: +011-68172100

REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: NIL

AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U40100UP2019PTC 124019

Registered Office:
C-11, Sector-65,
Gautam Buddha Nagar,
Noida, UP-201301

T: +91-120-6757000

E: avaadasataraMH@avaada.com

Sr.No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors

Total Amount

Independent Directors

(a) Fee for attending Board / Committee meetings

(b) Commission - -

(c) Others (please specify) - -

Total (B) (1) - -

Other Non-Executive Directors

(a) Fee for attending Board/ Committee meetings

(b) Commission - -

(c) Others (please specify) - -

Total (B) (2) - -

Total (B) = B (1) + B (2) - -

Total Managerial Remuneration - -

Overall Ceiling as per the Act. - -

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD: NIL

Sr. No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Gross salary CEO Company
Secretary

CFO

Total Amount

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income Tax 1961. - -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income
tax Act, 1961 - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 - -

Stock option - -

Sweat Equity - -

Commission - -

- as % of profit - -

- others (specify) - -

Others (please specify) - -

Total (C) - -
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: AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED
—-O CIN: U40100UP2019PTC124019
AVAADA

Delhi Office: Registered Office:

910/19, Suryakiran, C-11, Sector-65,

Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Gautam Buddha Nagar,

New Delhi — 110 001 Noida, UP-201301
T: +011-68172100

T: +91-120-6757000
E: avaadasataraMH@avaada.com

VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the
period ended March 31, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prashant Choubey Radha M.S.
Date: June 14, 2021 Director Director
Place: Noida DIN: 08072225 DIN: 08037734
_‘--—_‘\_\
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D-64, Ground Fioor, Near Radission Hotel,

SOCIATES Sector-55, Noida - 201301 (U.P)
GOYAI' M AlhOTRA & AS O Ph.: +91-120-4340341, 4155181, 8130048250
Clinriered Accounianis E-mail : contact@goyalmalhotra.com

Website : www.goyalmalhotra.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Avaada SataraMH
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
/ we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,

and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materia|
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professiona| skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves faijr
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure “A” statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

/ /] b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
| A Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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¢) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,

2021, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31 March, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)

Separate Report in Annexure “B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g)

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses

iii.  There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the
Investor Education and.Protection Fund.

For Goyal Malhotra & Associafes

Place: Noida
Date: 14" June 2021

UDIN:21098958ARAA QF6300
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of
“AVAADA SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED” on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Annexure A

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having

regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(i) (a) As explained to us, the inventories of finished goods, stores, spare parts and raw
materials were physically verified at regular intervals by the Management. In
case of inventories lying with third parties, certificates of stocks holding have been
received.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the Management
were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the
nature of its business.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of stock as compared to book
records.

(iiiy  The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not entered into any transaction covered under Sections 185 and
186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not
applicable.
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(V)

(vi)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty,

Based on our audit procedure and on the information and explanations given by
the management, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank government or
dues to debenture holders.

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt i struments) and term loans taken have been applied by
the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised, other
than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds.

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

In our opinion, the Company is not 3 Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards, further provisions of Section 177 are not applicable. to the
company.
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(xv)  In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with the directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of
the Act during the year. :

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

a
For Goyal Malhotra & Associates -
Chartered Accountants

Membership No.: 098958

Place! Noida
Date: 14% June 2021

UDIN: 21098958AA ARQFH300
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AVAADA
SATARAMH PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’'s Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls Operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Goyal Malhotra & Assd\c_j-étes
Chartered Accountants X

Membership No.: 098958

Place: Noida
Date: 14% June 2021
UDIN: 21098958ARRA @ F 6300
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Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC124019

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR Millions unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3.676.01 1.64
Capital work-in-progress 4 - 1,896.20
Right of use assets 5 526.53 -
Financial assets 6
Other financial assets 6(a) 99.91 94.03
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 3.56 0.09
Income tax assets (net) 8 0.67 -
Total non-current assets (A) 4,306.68 1,991.96
Current assets
Inventories 9 0.22 -
Financial assets 10
Trade receivables 10(a) 103.56 -
Cash and cash equivalents 10(b) 25.64 0.21
Other bank balances 10(c) 78.92 -
Other financial assets 10(d) 2.02 -
Other current assets 11 1.04 599.45
Total current assets (B) 211.40 599.66
Total assets (A+B) 4.518.08 2.591.62
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 1,309.14 1,105.70
Other equity 13 55.85 73.07
Total equity (C) 1,364.99 1,178.77
LIABILITIES
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities 14
Borrowings 14(a) 2.454.41 67.48
Lease liability 14(b) 223.55 -
Provisions 15 0.16 -
Total non current liabilities (D) 2,678.12 67.48
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 16
Borrowings 16(a) 265.96 215.09
Trade payables 16(b)
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 16(b)
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 16(b) 22.60 1,129.94
Lease liability 16(c) 8.16 -
Other financial liabilities 16(d) 177.13 -
Other current liabilities 17 1.12 0.34
Provisions 18 - -
Total current liabilities (E) 474.97 1,345.37
Total equity and liabilities (C+D+E) 4.518.08 2.591.62
11 statements 1-36

ership No. 098958

and on behalf of

Giyal Malhotra & Associates

Chijirtered Accountants

FR\N 008015C

Date: June 14, 2021

Place: Noida

UDIN: 21048958AAARQF 6300
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Radha MS
Director
DIN: 08037734

Prashant Choubey
Director
DIN: 08072225



Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC124019

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in INR Millions unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations 19 186.81 -
Other income 20 6.42 0.33
Total income (A) 193.23 0.33
Expenses
Cost of goods and services 21 1.01 -
Employee benetits expense 22 1.05 -
Finance costs 23 124.47 0.10
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 77.46 -
Other expenses 25 9.93 10.73
Total expenses (B) 213.92 10.83
Loss before tax (C=A-B) (20.69) (10.50)
Tax expense: 7
Current tax - -
Deferred tax (3.47) (0.09)
Total tax expenses (D) (3.47) (0.09)
Loss after tax (E=C-D) (17.22) (10.41)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans - -
[ncome tax effect of re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (F) - -
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (G=E+F) (17.22) (10.41)
Earnings per share: 26
(a) Basic (0.15) (2.47)
(b) Diluted 0.15) (2.47)
)eavieinpanying notes forming part of'(fie fiffancial statements 1-36

1fibership No. 098958

Goyal Malhotra & Associates
Chattered Accountants

FRN 008015C

Date: June 14, 2021

Place: Noida

UDIN: 21098958 AARA O F 6300
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For {ind on behalf of -
tadha MS

Prashant Choubey
Director Director
DIN: 08037734 DIN: 08072225



Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC124019

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Millions unless stated otherwise)

Particular

Mareh 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss before tax (20.68) (10.50)
Adjustments -
Finance cost 124.47 0.10
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment §5.53
Depreciation of right to use 21.94
Operating profit before working capital changes 181.26 (10.40)
Adjustment for working capital changes
Changes in other financial assets (5.88) (94.03)
Changes in current financial assets (2.02) -
Changes in inventories (0.22) -
Changes in trade receivables (103.56) -
Changes in other current assets 598.41 (599.45)
Changes in provisions 0.15 -
Changes in trade payables (1,107.36) 1,129.94
Changes in Current other financial liabilities 177.13
Changes in lease liabilities 231.71
Changes in other current liabilities 0.78 0.34
Cash from operations (29.60) 426.40
[ncome tax paid (0.67) -
Net cash from operating activities (30.27) 426.40
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (3,729.87) (1.64)
Capital Work-in-Progress 1,896.20 (1.896.20)
Right of use assets (548.48) -
Proceeds from investment in bank deposits (78.93) -
Net cash used in investing activities (2,461.08) (1,897.84)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 203.44 1,105.70
Proceeds from Equity component of interest free related party loan - 83.48
Proceeds from long term borrowings 2,386.93 67.48
Proceed of short term borrowings 50.88 215.09
Interest paid (124.47) (0.10)
Net cash from financing activities 2,516.78 1,471.65
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 25.43 0.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.21 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25.64 0.21
Components of cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with scheduled banks:

On current accounts 25.64 0.21
Cash and cash equivalents (note !'O(b)) / 25.64 0.21

*Tmbership No. 098958
or and on behalf of
soyal Malhotra & Associates

1-36

For and on behalf of board of directors

adha MS

Prashant Choubey
Director
DIN: 08072225

Director

DIN: 08037734
Dite: June 14, 2021

Place: Noida

UDIN: N0 RISBHANAAQFE300
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Avaada SataraMH Private Limited
CIN - U40100UP2019PTC124019

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise)

(a) Equity share capital

Particulars Number Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2019 - -
Changes in equity share capital (refer note 12) 11,05,70,027
Balance as at March 31, 2020 11,05,70,027 -
Changes in equity share capital (refer note 12) 2,03,44,050 203.44
Balance as at March 31, 2021 13,09,14,077 203.44
(b) Other equity
As on March 31, 2021

Particulars Reserves and Surplus| Equity component of Total

related party loan

Balance as at April 01, 2019 - - =
Loss for the vear (10.41) - (10.41)
Equity component of related party loan -~ ) - 83.48 83.48
Balance as at March 31, 2020 / / (10.41) 83.48 73.07
Loss for the vear / / (17.22) - (17.22)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 |  / (27.63) 83.48 55.85

in; m;-tatements 1-36

See accompanying notes forming part of |

¢t Yt pur report attached

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

W

Prashant Choubey
Director

Director
DIN: 08037734 DIN: 08072225

Chartired Accountants
FRN 008015C

Date: June 14, 2021
Place: Noida

UDIN: 21090950 PAA QR 6300
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Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC 124019

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

2.1

2.2

a)

b)

)

Corporate information
Avaada SataraMH Private Limited (“the Company™) is a private Company domiciled in India and incorporated on December 02, 2019 under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India as subsidiary of Avaada Energy Private Limited. The registered office of the Company is located
at Noida, Uttar Pradesh.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors on June 14, 2021.
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of generation of Solar power and operation & maintenance of power plants.
Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis and the historical cost convention. Historical cost is generaily
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. For accounting policy on fair value refer note 2.2 (q).

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when it is:

- expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classitied as non-current.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization/settlement in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property,
| equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than subsequently
recoyurfible from tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and borrowing costs attributable
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d)

€)

g)

Cost also includes replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specitic usetul lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for

Property, plant and equipment acquired and put to use for project purpose and capitalised and depreciation thereon is included in the project cost till
the project is ready for its intended use.

Capital work in progress (CWIP)

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP). At the point when an asset is operating at
management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transterred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation
commences. Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its
useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or
construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. The residual
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

Depreciation
Depreciation on power project related assets is provided on straight line method by considering the useful life as per the PPAs i.e. 25 years.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated on straight line method by considering the useful life prescribed in Part C of Schedule IT of the Companies
Act, 2013. The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are tully depreciated in the year of acquisition.
Leasehold improvements to office facilities are depreciated over the shorter ot the lease period or the estimated useful life of the improvement.

The assets™ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are indicators for imi)airment, and adjusted
prospectively.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the depreciation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The depreciation expense on tangible
assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is
their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment at each year end either
individually or at the cash generating unit level.

Leases

The Cofnjjany assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thai is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an iderfliffed asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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h)

As a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease
liabilities to make lease payment and right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of lease (i.e., the date of underlying the asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term:

The cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, as if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term.
Depreciation on right of use assets is calculating using the estimated life of the asset.

The right-of-use asset are also subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivables, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
expense (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., change to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iif) Short-term leases and leases low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.¢., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to lease of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset recognised over the lease term on the basis as rental income.
Contingent rent are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they
occur.

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost less any interest income earned on
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets.

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised cost of a financial liability after
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument.

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during
the period, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses
the funds/fir obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditifrys on that asset.

47



Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC124019

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR miflions unless otherwise stated)

i)

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a tinancial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

- Debt instruments at amortized cost

- Debt instruments at tair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

- Equity instruments in subsidiaries/associates carried at cost

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

(b) contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less
impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The category applies to the Company’s trade receivables, unbilled revenue, cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, security deposits, etc.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
(b) the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at cach reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OC1).

However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting

Debt instrument included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in
ies are carried at cost in financial statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured
lue with all changes recognized in the P&L.

48



Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC 124019

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR miilions unless otherwise stated)

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

(a) the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(b) the,Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through® arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass—through arrangement, it evaluates if and
to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transterred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the

asset, nor transterred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

- financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. security deposits, and bank balances;

- Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCL

- Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

For recognition of impairment loss on these financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance
based on a twelve month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting trom all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

- All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity s required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is
described below:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.c. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance shec} The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.

Until the asfet meets write off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the. basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identitied on a timely

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, other tinancial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as ‘Insurance Contracts’. The Company assess at the end of
each reporting period whether its recognised insurance liabilities (if any) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash flows under its
insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash
flows, the entire deficiency is recognised in profit or loss.

If a financial guarantee is an integral element of debts held by the entity, it is not accounted for separately.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replacedy another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange §§ modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective §aiTy ing amounts is recoguized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made
for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made
only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The
company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
Company's operation. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from
the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediate next repotting period following the change in the business model. The Company does
not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basts, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benetits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,
regardless of when the payment is being made.

Sale of power

Revenue from sale of power is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable, solar energy kilowatts
are supplied and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue is based on the solar energy kilowatts actually supplied to customers multiplied by the
rate per Kilo-watt hour agreed to in the respective PPAs. The solar energy kilowatts supplied by the Company are validated by the customer prior to
billing and recognition of revenue.

Income from carbon emission reduction

The Company recognized carbon emission reduction "CER" income in the period when it is reasonably certain that the Company will be able to
comply with the conditions necessary to obtain these carbon emission reduction. Company recognise CER value at average price of open contract for
sale of CER with customers.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial involvement with the
goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed contractual task has been completed. Revenue from operations is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes
or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Interest income
Interest Income trom a Financial Assets is recognised using effective interest rate method.

Dividend income
Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount has been established.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statement are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. Functional currency is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which a company operates and is normally the currency in which the company primarily generates
and expends cash.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies
for recognitior

Monetary assftyand liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
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Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the tair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition ot gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Foreign exchange difference on foreign currency botrowings, settlement gain/loss and fair value gain/loss on derivative contract relating to
borrowings are accounted and disclosed under finance cost. Such exchange difference does not include foreign exchange difference regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowings cost and capitalised with cost of assets.

Income taxes
Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Subject to exceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all deductible temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, on carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax loss:

- deferred income tax is not recognised on the initial recognition (including MAT) of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognized
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity).

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information
is available. All operating segments’ operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Operating Segment".

The Company’s Chief Operating Officer is the chief operating decision maker (CODM).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders (after deducting attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity
share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split
and reverse #are split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

se of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average nujniber of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

52



Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC124019

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{(Amount in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

0)

p)

Q

Provisions, contingencies and commitments
General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be l‘eqﬁired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow
of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets / liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset,
and is recognised as an asset.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefit to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Cash generating units as defined in Ind AS 36 on impairment of assets are identified at the balance sheet date. At the date of Balance Sheet, if there
are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use), an impairment loss is recognized. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is
recognized as an impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is reversed to the
extent of increase in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset
over its remaining useful lite.

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

- In the principal market for the asset or liability
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

53



Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC124019

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

r)

s)

t)

u)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benetits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of cach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

Inventories

Inventories comprises stores and spare parts and is carried at are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Events occurring after the balance sheet date
Impact of events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially etfecting the determination of the amounts
relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date are adjusted to respective assets and liabilities.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders
the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid,
the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benetit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. Gratuity liability of employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is expensed off at the
time of payment of premium.

irements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
definc beneﬁt liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
i ately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
‘e not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of?
* The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
* The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in
the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

* Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit
and loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the
respective trusts.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits.
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service. )

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected
to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The Company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of
profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to
defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) through a notification, amended Schedule IIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The
amendments revise Division L, [l and IIT of Schedule IIl and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division II which relate to
companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated
balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset under development.

If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of
where it has been used.

Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement” such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number
of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc

Statement o[ profit and loss:

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and erypto or virtual currency specified under the head
‘additional ififormation’ in the notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

The ameng s are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Sap
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land Building & Plant & machinery Total
improvements
Gross block
As at April 1, 2019 - - - -
Additions during the year 1.64 - - 1.64
As at March 31, 2020 1.64 - - 1.64
Additions during the year 0.28 62.78 3,666.83 3,729.89
As at March 31, 2021 1.92 62.78 3,666.83 3,731.53
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2019 - - - -
Depreciation for the year - - - -
As at March 31, 2020 - - - -
Depreciation for the year - 0.93 54.59 55.52
Disposals/ Adjustments - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 - 0.93 54.59 55.52
Net block
As at March 31, 2021 1.92 61.85 3,612.24 3,676.01
As at March 31, 2020 1.64 - - 1.64
4. Capital work-in-progress
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance as on April 1, 2020 1,896.20 -
Material and service cost 1,453.20 1,894.26
Finance Cost 134.30 1.87
Legal and professional expenses 1.96 0.07
Employee benetit expenses 1.01 -
Rent expenses 0.16 -
Insurance expenses 4.03 -
Project Compliance Expenses 7.47 -
Project extension charges 231.26 -
Expenses capitalised during the year (3,729.60) -
Balance as on March 31, 2021 - 1,896.20

5. Carrying value of right of use assets Land Leasechold Total
property*®

Gross Carrying amount
Balance as at April 01, 2020 - - -
Addition during the period 21531 333.16 548.47
Disposals/ Adjustments - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 215.31 333.16 548.47

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at April 01, 2020 - - -
Depreciation charged to profit and loss during the period 8.61 13.33 21.94
Disposals/ Adjustijents - - -
Balance as at MArth 31, 2021 8.61 13.33 21.94

Net Balance as fif March 31, 2021 206.70 319.83 526.53
Net Balance as §t March 31, 2020 - - -
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6. Non-current financial assets

6(a). Other financial assets

Particulars

Asaft

March 31, 2021

\s al
March 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 99.91 94.03
Total 99.91 94.03
Deferred tax assets (net)
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are:
(a) Profit or loss section As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the year - -
Total current tax expense - -
Deferred tax charge (credit):
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (3.47) (0.09)
Total deferred tax (3.47) 0.09)
Income tax expense (income) reported in the statement of profit or loss 3.47) (0.09)
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2021
and March 31, 2020
Accounting profit / (loss) before income tax (20.68) (10.50)
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 17.16% (March 31, 2020: 17.16%) (3.55) (1.80)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit - 1.71
Effect of tax on last year calculation 0.08 -
Total adjustments 0.08 1.71
Income tax expense/ (income) (3.47) 0.09)
(¢) Deferred tax asset/ (liability)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Particulars As at SCt:?:f;/n(tc:;(::gg)t Chargz/t(hc::dlt) to As at

April 1, 2020 . March 31, 2021

and Loss comprehensive

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - 116.86 - (116.86)
Unabsorbed loss carry forward 0.02 (121.58) - 121.60
Provision for expenses - (0.04) - 0.04
QOthers 0.07 1.29 - (1.22)
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) 0.09 (3.47) - 3.56
Particulars As at ;:?:iee/n(tc;:(:)lg:; Chargsi(hc::dlt) to As at

April 1, 2019 . March 31, 2020

and Loss comprehensive

Unabsorbed loss carry forward - (0.02) - 0.02
Others - (0.07) - 0.07
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) - (0.09) - 0.09

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities

and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Income tax assets

Particulgr As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

TDS, T 'S}and advance tax 0.67 -

Total |/ / 0.67 -

57



Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN -

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

U40100UP2019PTC 124019

(Al amounts in INR Millions unless stated otherwise)

9.

10.

10(a).

10(b).

10(c).

10(d).

Inventories
Particulars As al Asal
: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Stores and spares (lower of cost or net realisable value) 0.22 -
Total 0.22 -
Current financial assets
Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Receivables
From others 103.56 -
Total receivables 103.56 -
Break-up of security details
N5 ar RYEL

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered cood 103.56 -
Total 103.56 -
Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Total trade receivables 103.56 -

No trade or other receivable are due trom directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade
or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days from the date of invoice.

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks

on Deposit Accounts

on current accounts 25.64 0.21

Cash on hand - -

Total 25.64 0.21

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Particulars Asai Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks

on current accounts 25.64 0.21

Total cash and cash equivalents 25.64 0.21

Other bank balances

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Term deposits with orizinal maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 78.92 -

Total 78.92 -

Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Seyllity deposit 1.80 -

Imﬂ'st accrued on Fixed deposits 0.22 -

Tdtpl 2.02 -

A
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11.

12.

Other current assets

As at
March 31, 2021

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Advances to suppliers 1.01 0.01

Advances to related parties (refer note 30) - 266.27

Prepaid expenses 0.03 333.16

Total 1.04 599.44

Equity share capital

Particulars \s al Asal s at \sai
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Authorised share capital Number of shares Number of shares

Equity shares of INR 10 each 13,10,00,000 13,10,00,000 1,310.00 1,310.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each 13,09,14,077 11,05,70,027 1,309.14 1,105.70

Total 1,309.14 1,105.70

(2) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year (expressed in absolute numbers)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Equity Shares
At the commencement of the year
Add: [ssued during the vear (refer note (b) below)

11,05,70,027
2,03,44,050

11,05,70,027

At the end of the vear 13,09,14,077

11,05,70,027

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. after
distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding company

Out of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below { expressed in absolute numbers):

Particulars \s at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Avaada Energy Private Limited * 9,68,75,962 9,68,75,962

*Qne equity share held by Mr. Sindoor Mittal jointly with Avaada Energy Private Limited

(d) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares ( expressed in absolute numbers)

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars Number of % holding in the % holding in the Number
Shares class class
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up and held by:
Avaada Energy Private Limited* 9,68,75,962 74.00% 9,68,75,962 87.62%
Bharat Forge Limited 1,42,45,000 10.88% 1,089 0.00%
shan Chemical Industries Limited 66,92,000 511% 66,92,000 6.05%
air/India Private Limited 70,00,615 5.35% 70,00,615 6.33%
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13.

14.

14(a).

Other equity

Particulars

\s at
March 31, 2021

\sat
March 31, 2020

Retained earnings

Opening balance (10.41) -

Net loss for the vear (17.22) (1041

Closing balance (A) (27.63) (10.41)

Equity component of related party loan

Opening balance 83.48 -

Movement duriny the year - 83.48

Closing balance (B) 83.48 83.48

Total (A+B) 55.85 73.07

Non-current financial liabilities

Long term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Term loan from banks 829.18 -

Term loan from Financial Institutions 828.10

Supplier's credit from banks 848.91 -

Carried at amortised cost

Unsecured

Loan from related parties ( refer note 30) 74.61 67.48

2,580.80 67.48
Less: Current maturities of loni term borrowinus (refer note 16(d)) 126.39 -
Total 2,454.41 67.48

Summary of borrowings arrangement

(i) Term loan of INR 479.12 (March 31, 2020: Nil) from HDFC Bank Limited net of processing charges

Indian rupee long term loan from bank carries annual interest rate of one year MCLR (current effective rate being 10.15% - 10.50% p.a.) payable
at the end of every month. The principle amount is repayable in 49 quarterly instalments commencing from March 2021. The loan is secured by first
charge on entire immovable assets of the project, present and future; tangible movable assets of the project including movable plant and machinery,
machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vechile and all other movable assets of the project , present and futures; intangible
assets, current assets and receivables of the project (both present and future), first charge on escrow account, debt service reserve account, and other
reserves and any other bank accounts. Pledge of 74% of equity shares & CCD’s in the Company, held by Avaada Energy Private Limited.

(ii) Term loan of INR 350.06 (March 31, 2020: Nil) from Axis Bank Limited net of processing charges

Indian rupee long term loan from Axis Bank carries annual interest rate of one year MCLR (effective rate for the year being 10.15% p.a.) payable at
the end of every month. The principal amount is repayable in 49 structured quarterly instalments commencing from March, 2021. The loan is
secured by first charge on entire immovable assets of the project, present and future; tangible movable assets of the project including movable plant
and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vechile and all other movable assets of the project , present and futures;
intangible assets, current assets and receivables of the project (both present and future), first charge on escrow account, debt service reserve
account, and other reserves and any other bank accounts. Pledge of 74% of equity shares & CCD’s in the Company, held by Avaada Energy Private

(iii) Term loan of INR 518.00 (March 31, 2020: Nil) from IREDA

[ndian rupee long term loan from IREDA carries annual interest rate of one year MCLR (effective rate for the year being 10.15% p.a.) payable at the

end of every month. The principal amount is repayable in 49 structured quarterly instalments commencing from March, 2021. The loan is secured

by first charge on entire immovable assets of the project, present and future; tangible movable assets of the project including movable plant and
#Myery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vechile and all other movable assets of the project , present and futures;

ble assets, current assets and receivables of the project (both present and future), first charge on escrow account, debt service reserve
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14(b).

15.

16.

16(a).

16(b).

(iv) Term loan of INR 310.10 (March 31, 2020: Nil) from ABFL

Indian rupee long term loan from ABFL carries annual interest rate of one year MCLR (effective rate for the year being 10.15% p.a.) payable at the
end of every month. The principal amount is repayable in 49 structured quarterly instalments commencing from March, 2021. The loan is secured
by first charge on entire immovable assets of the project, present and future; tangible movable assets of the project including movable plant and
machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vechile and all other movable assets of the project , present and futures;
intangible assets, current assets and receivables of the project (both present and future), first charge on escrow account, debt service reserve
account, and other reserves and any other bank accounts. Pledge of 74% of equity shares & CCD’s in the Company, held by Avaada Energy Private
Limited.

(v) Supplier’s eredit from HDFC Bank limited amounting to INR 848.91 (March 31, 2020: INR Nil)

Supplier's credit from bank carried interest rate 1.06% to 1.57% payable within 365 days. The loan is secured by first charge on entire immovable
assets of the project, present and future; tangible movable assets of the project including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and
accessories, furniture, fixtures, vechile and all other movable assets of the project , present and futures; intangible assets, current assets and
receivables of the project (both present and future), first charge on escrow account, debt service reserve account, and other reserves and any other
bank accounts. Pledge of 74% of equity shares & CCD’s in the Company, held by Avaada Energy Private Limited.

(vi) Loan from Avaada Energy Private Limited amounting to INR 74.61 (March 31, 2020: INR 67.48)

“The loan is interest-free and is repayable after approval and compliances of bank and financial institutions conditions for

repayment, however for accounting calculation of amortisation, period of loan considered eight years.

Lease liability

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Carried at fair value through profit and loss

Lease Liability 223.55 -

Total 223.55 -

Long term provisions

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 28) 0.08 -
Leave encashment 0.08 -

Total 0.16 -

Current financial liabilities

Short term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Unsecured

Loans repavable on demand to related parties (refer note 30) 265.96 215.09

Total 265.96 215.09

Terms and conditions:
(a) Loan from related parties

Interest free loan from Avaada Energy Private Limited amounting to INR 265.96 ( March 31, 2020 : INR 215.09).
The borrowing is in the nature of revolving credit facility as and when requested by the Company. It is interest-tree and does not have a fixed tenure.

The loan is repayable as and when demanded by the lender.

Trade payables

Particulars \s al Asal
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Carried at amortised cost

Totyf (Jutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -

Tolfil putstanding dues to related parties other than micro and small enterprises - 1,128.33

Tokil putstanding dues to other parties other than micro and small enterprises 22.60 1.61

Tofal 22.60 1,129.94
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16(c). Lease liability

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

\s at
March 31, 2020

Carried at amortised cost

Lease liability

8.16

Total

8.16

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from fianncing activities pursuant to IND AS 7 - Cash Flows

The table below details change in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows where, or future cash tlows will be, classified in the Company’s statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Particulars Fianncing cash

flows

Opening balance
as at April 1, 2020

Closing balance as

Non-cash changes at March 31, 2021

Lease liabilities - - 231.71 231.71

Particulars Opening balance Fianneing cash Non-cash changes Closing balance as
as at April 1, 2019 flows at March 31, 2020
Lease liabilities - - - -
16(d). Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Carried at amortised cost

Current maturities of long-term borrowings 126.39 -

Derivative liabilities 35.66 -

Payables to employee 0.02 -

Interest accrued but not due on loan from banks 9.53 . -

Lease pavable to related parties 5.53 -

Total 177.13

17. Other current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Statutory dues 1.12 0.34

Total 1.12 0.34

18. Short term provisions

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Provision for employee benefits
Grafliity (refer note 28)* - -
Lafive gncashment* - -

Tot;‘l ]' - -

*Gr uilj and leave encashment in absolute figure INR 1,108.00 and 1,64 1.00 respectively.
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19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Electricity revenue

Sale of electricity 185.80 -
Contract revenue

Supply of material to related parties 1.01 -
Total 186.81 -

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest income on -

Term deposits 0.54 -

Security deposits 5.88 0.32
Miscellaneous income - 0.0t
Total 6.42 0.33

Cost of goods and services

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Cost of material supply to related parties

1.01 -

Total

1.01 -

Employee benefit expense

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Salary, wages and bonus 0.80 -
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 0.04 -
Gratuity expense (Refer note 28) 0.08 =
Leave encashment 0.08 -
Staff welfare 0.05 -
Total 1.05 -

Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest costs on account of

Loan from banks 75.37 -
Loans from related parties (refer note 30) 7.13 0.10
Lease liability (Refer note ) 21.92 -
Exchange differences to the extent considered as borrowing 17.29 -
Other borrowing costs

Bank Charges & BG Charges 0.72 -
Processing Fees 1.69 -
Other borrwing cost 0.35 -
Total 124.47 0.10

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Particular,

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciat{orjon property, plant and equipment 55.52 -

Depreciatlor] on right of use 21.94 -

Total 77.46 -
7
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25.

26.

Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rent expense 0.09 0.73
Legal and professional expenses 0.40 -
Fees and subscription 0.13 9.98
Electricity expenses 2.00 -
Insurance expenses 2.35 -
Auditor remuneration* 0.06 0.02
Scheduling & Forecasting 0.26 -
Security expenses 0.33 -
Plant maintenance expenses 3.96 -
Miscellaneous expenses 0.35 -
Total 9.93 10.73

*Payment to Auditors

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Statutory audit fee 0.06 0.02

Total 0.06 0.02

Earnings per share (EPS)

Earnings per equity share:
Basic (0.15) (2.47)
Diluted (0.15) (2.47)

Basic earnings per share:
The earnings and weishted average number of cquity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit/(loss) for the year (17.22) (10.41)
Eamings used in the calculation of basic eamings per share from continuing operations (17.22) (10.41)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 11,69,56,567 42,08,050

Diluted earnings per share:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit/(loss) for the year (17.22) (10.41)

Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations (17.22) (10.41)

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share reconciles with the weighted average number of equity
shares used in the calculation of basic earings per share as follows:

Weighted avey
Weighted avia:

¢ number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 11,69,56,567 42,08,050
- number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 11,69,56,567 42,08,050

There is no
purpose of di

‘ntial equity shares that are anti-dilutive and therefore not considered for the weighted average number of equity shares for the
‘d earnjngs per share.
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27. Disclosure of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions
The judgements and key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its judgements, assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are as specified below:-
Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in
the financial statements.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unabsorbed tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation and all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax asscts that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

The Company has reviewed tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation, and determined that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available against which such tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised. Thus, the Company has recognized a corresponding deferred tax
asset on the same.

Any changes in these assumptions may have an impact on the measurement of the deferred taxes in future.

Fair value of interest-free long term loans

The fair value of interest-free loans is determined using discounted cash flow method using a market interest rate of a comparable instrument having the
same terins. The difference between the fair value and transaction value has been considered as deemed equity contribution from the parent company
hence recognised and included in equity.

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the present valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and_volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value

Impairment of non-financial assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress, intangible assets and intangible assets under development is based
on estimates and assumptions, in particular the expected market outlook and future cash flows associated with the power project. There is no indication
of impairment of assets as at each reporting date. Any changes in these assumptions may have an impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount
resulting in impairment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost (net of impairment, if any) annually, or more frequently when there is indication
for impairment [ the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for in the statement of profit and loss.

Useful lives « operty, plant and equipment
The Company {ejiews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in
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28. Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans
(a) Defined benefit plan - gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit for gratuity. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15
days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Company provides for the liability in its books of accounts based on the
actuarial valuation. The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the
funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company’s plan are shown below:
March 31, 2021

Discount rate 6.88%
Salary increment rate 7.00%
Retirement age 60 years
Mortality table Indian Assured lives

Mortality (2012-14)

Withdrawal rates: age related and past experience % Withdrawal
Age March 31, 2021
Upto 30 year 3%
Between 31 and 44 years 2%
Above 44 years 1%

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yield available on the
Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the Habilities and the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: March 31, 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation -
Current service cost 0.03
Past service cost 0.04
Interest cost -
Closing defined benefit obligation 0.07

Balance sheet

March 31, 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.07)
Fair value of plan assets -
Plan asset / (liability) 0.07)
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss March 31, 2021
Interest cost -
Current service cost 0.03
Past service cost 0.04
Net benefit expense 0.08
Actuarial (gain) / loss March 31, 2021

Due to change in demographic assumptions -

Due to change in tinancial assumptions -

Due to change in experience adjustments -
Total -
A qua ive sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021 is as shown below:

Discount rate Salary growth rate
Sensit ) 0.50% increase  0.50% decrease  0.50% increase 0.50% decrease
Increask-.illucryiise) in defined benefit obligation (0.01) 0.01 0.01 0.01)
¥
S
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Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material hence impact of change due to these is not calculated. Sensitivities as to rate of increase of

pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable.
The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Within one year

1-5 years

More than 5 years

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 2.54 years

Description of risk exposures:

March 31, 2021
0.00
0.02

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follows:

a) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s lability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also

increase the liability.
b) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

¢) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
d) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can

impact plan's liability.

(b) Compensated absence : The amount of the provision INR 00,08 Millions (31 March 2020: INR Nil)

The principal assumptions used in determining compensated absences obligations for the Company’s plan are shown below:

Discount rate

Salary increment rate
Leave availment rate
Retirement age
Mortality table

Withdrawal rates: age related and past experience
Age

Upto 30 year

Between 31 and 44 years

Above 44 years

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021 is as shown below:

March 31, 2021
6.88%
7.00%
0.50%
60 years
Indian Assured lives
Mortality (2012-14)

% Withdrawal

March 31, 2021
3%
2%
1%

Discount rate

Salary growth rate

0.50% increase  0.50% decrease
(0.01) 0.01

Sensitivity Level
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation

(c) Defined
During the

tribution plan
, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss

ntribution to Employee’s Provident Fund
._Eﬂtgut' n to Employee’s State Insurance Corporation
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29 Operating Segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company is
involved in only one business, which is the generation and transmission of solar power. Hence, the Company has only one operating segment. Further,
the Company is having a single geographical segment since its operations are wholly based in India. Therefore no disclosure has been made in the
financial statements.

30. Related party transactions

(i) Names of related parties and related party relationship
(a) Related parties where control exists

Ultimate holding company Avaada Ventures Private Limited

Holding company Avaada Energy Private Limited

(ii) Transaction with related parties during the vear
Particulars Ultimate holding company Holding Company & Other

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Issue of share capital - - - 968.76
Avaada Eneryy Private Limited - - - 968.76
Long term borrowings received - - - 150.87
Avaada Ener¢v Private Limited - - - 150.87
Short term borrowings received - - 230.18 215.08
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - 230.18 215.08
Short term borrowings returned - - 432.83 -
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - 432.83 -
Sale of zoods to - - 1.20 -
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - 1.20 -
Amount received for sale of poods from - - 1.20 -
Avaada Enervy Private Limited - - 1.20 -

EPC advance transfer from holding company under BTA

Contract - - - 348.03
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - - 348.03
EPC material & services purchased from 1,428.39 185.26 - -
Avaada Venture Private Limited 1,428.39 185.26 - -
Amount paid against EPC supply and service 1,162.12 451.53 - -
Avaada Venture Private Limited 1,162.12 451.53 - -
Amount paid for purchase of assets under BTA contract - - - 1,356.30
Avaada Enerpy Private Limited - - - 1,356.30
Interest charged on BTA outstanding to - - 104.76 -
Avaada Energv Private Limited - - 104.76 -
Amount paid towards security deposit - - - 427.60
Avaada Energv Private Limited - - - 427.60
Assets purchase under BTA contract - - - 1,709.00
Avaada Energv Private Limited - - - 1,709.00
Amount paid towards Assets purchase under BTA contract - - 700.73 -
Avaada Enerzy Private Limited - - 700.73 -
Reimbursement of expenses by - - 148.76 0.01
Avaada Eneryyv Private Limited - - 148.53 0.01

vajida Clean Project Private Limited - - 0.23 -

68




Avaada SataraMH Private Limited

CIN - U40100UP2019PTC 124019

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR Millions unless stated otherwise)

(ii) Balances outstanding at the end of the year

31.

32,

33.

Particulars Ultimate holding company Holding Company & Other
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Long term borrowings - - 150.87 150.87
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - 150.87 150.87
Short term borrowings - - 160.97 215.09
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - 160.97 215.09
Avaada Clean Project Private Limited - - 0.23 -
Security deposit given to - - 427.60 427.60
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - 427.60 427.60
Amount payable of assets sold under BTA contract - - - 700.73
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - - 700.73
EPC advance paid - 266.27 - -
Avaada Venture Private Limited - 266.27 - -
Bank guarantee issued on behalf of the company by 136.92 - - -
Avaada Ventures Private Limited 136.92 - - -
Corporate guarantee issued on behalf of the company by - - 1,709.47 -
Avaada Energy Private Limited - - 1,709.47 -

*Corporate Guarentee amount is INR 2,700.00 obligation is limited to the extent loan outstanding.
**excluding equity component of INR 83.48.

Fair values

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, short term borrowings and trade payables, approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy
Since the financial assets and liabilities of the Company as on reporting date have short term maturities, the book values are reasonable approximation
of fair value, hence fair value hierarchy has not been disclosed.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's financial liabilities comprise short term borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks as per policics
approved by the management, who oversee the management of these risks.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. As on reporting date,
the Company does not envisage any market risk

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from balances deposits with the bank.

W risk

s are managed by the Company's management in accordance with Company's policy. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance
nuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans, equity shares and other strategic financing means. The Company attempts
2 balance between the timing of outflow and inflow of funds. The Company is not subject to any restrictions on the use of its

%
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabifities as at March 31, 2021:

Particulars Within 1 year Between 1 and 5 More than S years Total
years
Financial liabilities
Term loan from banks/financial institutions™ 126.39 605.68 925.21 1,657.28
Supplier's credit 848.91 - - 848.91
Long-term loan from related parties - - 74.61 74.61
Lease liability 9.80 37.69 176.06 223.55
Borrowings 265.96 - - 265.96
Trade payables 22.60 - - 22.60
Lease liability 8.16 - - 8.16
Other financial liabilities 177.13 - - 177.13
1,458.95 643.37 1,175.88 3,278.20

The table below provides details resarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 31, 2020:

Particulars Within 1 year Between 1 and 5 More than 5 years Total
years
Borrowings 215.09 - - 215.09
Trade payables 1,129.94 - - 1,129.94
1,345.03 - - 1,345.03

34, Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debt. Borrowings of the Company are short-term in nature hence the calculation of gearing ratio has not been disclosed. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021.

35. Commitments and contingencies
a) Leases
The Company does not have any commitment with respect to leases.

b) Capital and other commitments
The Company does not have any long term commitment or non-cancellable contractual commitments.

¢) Contingent liabilities
The Company does not have any pcr’ding litig/itions which would impact its financial position.

36. Details of dues to micro and small\cnten ises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
According to the records available wit - Comypuny, there are no amounts due to entities that are classified as Micro and Small Enterprises under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprlses fevelfment Act, 2006. Further no interest has been paid or was payable to such entities under the said Act.

For and on behalf of board of directors

W Prashant Choubey

Charttred Accountants Director Director

FRN 008015C DIN: 08037734 DIN: 08072225
Date: June 14, 2021

Place: Noida

UDIN:2109B9SBRARAAGF 6300
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